R

10.

11,
12.

13.

Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

REGULAR MEETING
7:00 P.M. TUESDAY JUNE 6, 2023
COUNCIL CHAMBERS CROMWELL TOWN HALL
41 WEST STREET

AGENDA
RECEIVED RECOED
oy T
Jodinn
Call to Order TOMM CLERK
RO“ Call CROEMELL . o7
Seating of Alternates o

Approval of Agenda

Public Comments

Development Compliance Officer Report:

Director of Planning and Development Report:

New Business: Accept and Schedule New Applications:

a. Application #23-15: Request to create a two-lot subdivision at 84 Hicksville Road.
Adelbrook Behavioral & Development Services, Inc. is the Applicant and Adelbrook, Inc.
is the Owner.

New Business: : .

a. Section 8-24 Mandatory Referral for the sale of a 1.93-acre portion of 20 Winchester
Way.

Public Hearings:

a. Application #23-13: Request for a Special Permit under Sections 3.3.C.4,7.5.B.4, 8.7 of
the Zoning Regulations to aliow for restaurant with alcoholic beverages at 35A Berlin Road

- in the Highway Business Zone District. Kemal Cecunyanin is the Applicant and River

Grace Plaza LLC is the Owner.

b. Application #23-14: Request for a Special Permit under Sections 3.3.C.4, 7.5.B.4, 8.7 of
the Zoning Regulations to allow for restaurant with alcoholic beverages at 530 Main Street
in the Loca) Business Zone District. Brian Bonneau is the Applicant and Marsal Realty
Corp is the Owner.

Commissioner's Comments:

Approval of Minutes:

a. April 4, 2023

b. April 18, 2023

c. May 4, 2023

Adjourn:



Fuipuaf [eaoiddy uorsiaipgng 10j ddy peoy S[IASYAH 09| "oul ‘sedtalag Juswido[aAd(] 29 [elIoiARYag NOOIq[apY| SI-€T
Buipuag sagriaaag o1j0yoI[E 19011G WEBA] 056 ngouuod Uelg) $1-£7
A JuRInRISYY Jeg-un  [easdg 1) ddy
Suipuag saBeianaq o1joyoo|e peoy uljisg v 6¢ utueAundd) [ewdd|  ¢1-£2
Ylm Jueinelsay-nuling [eroads oy ddy

reaodddy aae) uadin) I XI[2 2150 TI-tT

SANENSIUIWPY YI[eOHON-UONBILIPOIA ueld a)i§ 1o ddy| 1un peoy ayidunys 87
[eaoxddy M0US 18D - N J taag Arelodwa I Jof ddy SPIS|IH/AS9 M\ /PUBT] poosiig Asupoy| T1-€T

QANBNSIUTWPY MIN
paroaddvilczoz v/ [eaciddy uerg aug Joy ddy}  aan aurT Awuno) o/ D171 ‘siopling uodao| 01-¢€2
paroaddy|€z0T/ by uonEdIPOI Ue[d 1§ 10§ ddy 81 UDPIN gH 0/2 OTT OSO-NEH|  60-€2

ayng peoy Midunys [
parciddv|czoz/ v/t UOTIRILIPO] ueld aug Joj ddy peOy uIJdg 11 BISAIIQ) US[2AY]  80-€T
UMEBIPYI A juaag Arerodwa] oy ddy unoy) uyof ues ¢ esseIN Apuam|  L0-€T
[eaciddy uonesJIpo ueld 1S Jo] ddy aue T MaN 0F o1198nQ Rqid]  90-€T

QANBISIUIWPY

panroxddv |czoz/v/y Jwied jeroadsg Joy ddy peoy S3[0D Th1 Husy 2189[2) @ sloueL]l  S0-tC
panosddy|€z0z/L/€ NuLad [eroadg Joy ddy pecy qnid JIoD | UOIEPUNO | AJUNUILIOY) PIOJIEH JAEAID|  $0-£T
Surpusg [eaciddy ueyg 2us Joy ddy (2A11(T 2uI7 AAUN0))) D11 ‘nondsuuo 03sAg|  €0-€7

DAY [[PMUIOL) SEE]
panoxddvfczoz/12/2 nuueg Jeroads oy ddy 19205 UIRJA] 796 jlpaej Uy TO-€C
paroaddy|cz0z/8/7 UOTIBDIJIPOJA UB|d 2Uu§ Joy ddy 12208 1IS9M 101 UOLIP[Y UBLLION / SUIAIT JUBUSAODL  [0-€T
snjes ajeq uoispaq Ay Jo adA) uonesoT NS jueanddy jo awen|]  awiRg




Pl
APPLICATION# QQ ;2- l l )

TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

APPLICATION FOR SUBDIVISION APPROVAL

Name of Subdivision
(if applicable):

Street Address: 84 HleSVi“e Road

Volume/Page: 1772 ] 252

Zoning District; {29 piy 400105700

Applicant's Name: Adelbrook Behavioral & Development Services, Inc.
Cromwell, CT 06416

Telephone: (860) 635-6010

Fmail Address:  jswanson@adelbrook.org

T — Adelbrook, Inc.
Aidress: 60 Hicksville Road
Cromwell, CT 06416

Attached:

O 1. Application fee in the amount of$3_20-00 :
[0 2. Copy of Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency Permit, if applicable;
[0 3. Evidence of Water Pollution Control Authority approval, if applicable;

[J 4. Eight copies of plans prepared in accordance with Article 403 and 404 of the
Cromwell Subdivision Regulations.

Incomplete applications may be rejected at the next scheduled meeting
of the Planning and Zoning Commission



it
¥

i
i
|
i

it

Please answer the following questions:

1. Is any part of the site within 300' of an adjoining town?
2. Does any part of the site contain wetlands?

3. Ifyou propose to disturb more than five acres, have you filed a
Stormwater Management Plan with DEP?

4. If the subdivision will involve more than 100,000 sf of floor area
or 199 parking spaces, have you applied for an STC Permit with
DOT?

5. Is any portion of the site subject to any Conservation Restriction
per Sec. 47-42d of the Connecticut General Statutes?

Mogso ugn,m

O Yes

O Yes

O Yes

O Yes

O Yes

5 AY

aH-15

1 No
[ No
MNo [ONA
ONo [ENA
[11 No

2>

Appllcﬂﬂ@dclbmok Behavioral & Development Services, Inc.
By: Alyssa Goduti, CEO

When Lt

Date

5" 25 Ao

Owner Ad ook, Inc.
By: Alyssa Goduti, CEO

E‘““: AR I ITLAS D g o -ﬁu-v..a-'.m.a-u-',

T S LRI PO A

o s o MR e I VLSS Wi £

Date



TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

LEGAL NOTICE

The Town of Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on
Tuesday June 6, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. in Room 224 of the Cromwell Town Hall at 41 West
Street on the following item:

1. Application #23-13: Request for a Special Permit under Sections 3.3.C4,7.5.B 4, 8.7
of the Zoning Regulations to allow for restaurant with alcoholic beverages at 35A Berlin
Road in the Highway Business Zone District. Kemal Cecunyanin is the Applicant and
River Grace Plaza LLC is the Owner.

2. Application #23-14: Request for a Special Permit under Sections 3.3.C.4, 7.5.B.4, 8.7
of the Zoning Regulations to allow for restaurant with alcoholic beverages at 530 Main
Street in the Local Business Zone District. Brian Bonneau is the Applicant and Marsal
Realty Corp is the Owner.

At this hearing interested persons may appear and be heard and written testimony
received. This application is available for public inspection in the office of the Town
Planner.

Alice Kelly
Chairman

Dated in Cromwell, Connecticut this the 18t day of May 2023.



Application# i / 3
Fee 310,00

TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL PERMIT

Type of Activity: /Zé S\‘T!f? o /) M éf :4/6 0o / 1 o be veraqes

(Per Section 2,3, Coi}4 5.8, Y 87 J of the Cromwell Zoning Regulations)
Street Address: 3 g A B € r’ iﬂh RD 'J Zoning District: ﬂ IEH A ﬁgpﬁﬂ 2554
Assessor's Parcel ID #: 00 319 (00 Volume/Page: I3/3;/0 8

Applicant's Name: /Z el EC Y gar Al

Address: 198 pan /B C7 cdlolr/el €7
Telephone Number (daytime): 58«65 b L 4

Email Address: ZO LEMNUDKE CY @ 414/ co~7

Property Owner's Name: 8 }Z /A A& CELY
Address: Qﬂ/(ff 6@4@C— '}Oéﬁ L) Z(_C{,
R5 4 belyn Rp clokece ag @({//é

Description of Proposed Activity:

ResYaaramt + Beor.

[ certify that I have read and I am familiar with the Cromwell Zoning Regulations that pertain to
this type of Special Permit actiyity, and with Section 13.2.d. (Sign Posting).

= (applicant) 3 (cfate) ;

rev. 1/6/11



Application# o (q

TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL PERMIT

Type of Activity: 62 l GohO(XL 'Beu GTC&GQ -Qr' ?e%aurowtﬁl

(Per Section B8 }1- 9:-6-4, 8. 5L of the Cromwell Zoning Regulations)
Street Address: 5 30 W)am 8‘\"(‘@(’/\" Zoning District: L—%

Assessor's Parcel ID #: (OO 205, 0 Volume/Page: 5 O[ = L{ 8 e

Applicant's Name: ’B cC\CLN ’%or\ FlCoLLA

Address: 11 Court Sﬂ\&{’ (romwell, CT.
Telephone Number (daytime): ¥ (0 (O = 9 8" 3 & L@q
Email Address: /L))Oﬂf,s e @ ﬂﬁj\’zm . ﬂeQ

Property Owner's Name: mcl C S{l, :‘2@& J(/\I (] O

\

Address: 1233 (Quf—el (’1‘(—0\/6 E/CL M.ddl€+ou>ﬂ00q5?’

l

Description of Proposed Activity:

’bar/ Les taurant

[ certify that I have read and I am familiar with the Cromwell Zoning Regulations that pertain to
this type of Special Permit activity, and with Section 13.2.d. (Sign Posting).

Buian) Borreas) &3 4//%/23

= (applicant) (datk)

rev. 1/6/11



Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

REGULAR MEETING
7:00 PM. TUESDAY APRIL 4, 2023
COUNCIL CHAMBERS CROMWELL TOWN HALL
41 WEST STREET

Minutes and Record of Votes

Present: Chairman Alice Kelly, Vice Chairman Michael Cannata, Chris Cambareri, Ann
Grasso, Nick Demetriades,

Absent: Brian Dufresne, Ken Rozich, John Keithan, Paul Cordone, Robert Donchue

Also present:  Dircctor of Planning and Development Stuart Popper, Zoning Enforcement Officer
Bruce Driska and Town Council Liaison Jim Demetriades

1. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 7:01pm by Chairman Kelly.
RECEIVED FOR RECORD
2. Roll Call fier 34;2023 102514
Jofinn Dogls
T0UH CLERK
The presence of the above members was noted. CROMWELL: C7

3.  Seating of Alternates

4. Approval of Agenda

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Ann Grasso to approve the agenda
with the amendment of adding items 8b. Application #23-09, 51 Shunpike Road, Goldfish Swim
School site plan modification for a new sign and item 8c. application #23-10 Morecon Builders,
LLC, 70 County Line Drive, Site Plan approval. All were in favor; the motion passed.

5. Public Comments

6. Development Compliance Officer Report:

Mr. Driska handed out an amended report to replace the one included in the package and said he
added application #23-10 to the spreadsheet.



7.  Director of Planning and Development Report:

Mr. Cannata asked Mr. Popper if there has been any movement on the Sysco Project on County
Line and Mr. Popper said that their applications have been tabled at the Rocky Hill Planning and
Zoning Commission and the Conservation Commission. He said staff had concerns about the
driveway being close to the Amazon building and the Public Works garage entrances and exits.
Mr. Popper said the town would like to see the Sysco driveway moved further east.

Mr. Demetriades asked about the existing condition of Hicksville Road and said it is a mess and
he hopes it gets repaved. Mr. Driska said that he s not sure of it’s ranking on the town road
repaving list. Chairman Kelly suggested that the town consider using ARPA money to repave it.

Mr. Cambareri said he had some questions about the site plan modification procedures and
Chairman Kelly said that we can discuss that at the end under the Commissioners comments.

- Mr. Popper said as a reminder at our April 18, 2023 meeting we will be discussing the POCD
vision statement. e noted we will be emailing out info before the meeting.

8. New Business: Accept and Schedule New Applications:
a. Application #23-08: Request for a Site Plan Modification at 11 Berlin Road for a sign for
a new business. Ayelen Olivera is the Applicant and Joseph Airo is the Owner.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to accept and
schedule application #23-08 to be heard tonight. All were in favor; the motion passed.

Mr. Popper said application #23-08 is for a new sign at 11 Berlin Road. He said Mr. Driska has
reviewed the sign and it is in compliance with our zoning and the use is also an approved use. He

said a rendering of the sign is in your packages.

Mr. Michael Harmon addressed the Commission said that he and Ayelen Olivera are opening a
new tattoo shop which will alse be an art gallery. Ms. Olivera said the sign would be back lit.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to approve
application #23-08. All were in favor; the motion passed.

8b. Application #23-09, site plan modification for a new sign at Goldfish Swim School, 51
Shunpike Road, HBN Nitkin is the owner/applicant.

Mr. Popper said that Mr. Driska has reviewed this sign and it is in compliance with the zoning
regulations.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Nick Demetriades to accept and
schedule application #23-09 to be heard tonight. All were in favor; the motion passed.

Craig Way, HBN Nitkin in Greenwich, CT said they have just signed a lease with Goldswim



3
School and this will be the 3rd in Connecticut. He said they will take the 8,100 square feet
between Sally’s and the liquor store. Mr. Way handed out the color elevations. He said the actual
building construction plans will be submitted in about 10 days and then they will start seeking
bids. Mr. Way said their goal is to open by December 1st. He said they average about 2,000
lessons a week and are open 7 days a week. Mr. Way said there will not be a change to the
facade. He said the sign will be illuminated with channel lettering.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to approve
application #23-09. All were in favor; the motion passed.

8c. Application #23-10 Morecon Builders site plan approval for a contractors building at 70
County Line Drive.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Ann Grasso to accept and schedule
application #23-10 for the first meeting in May. All were in favor; the motion passed.

9.  New Business:
a. Application #23-05: Request for a Special Permit under Section 2.7.A.4 of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for a garage which shall exceed 1,000 square feet at 142 Coles Road.
Francis Henri and Celeste Henri are the Applicants and the Owners.

Chairman Kelly read the public hearing legal notice for application #23-05 dated March 23,
2023.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to open the public
hearing for application #23-05. All were in favor; the motion passed.

Mr. Francis Henri of 142 Coles Road said he has 3 letters from neighbors that support the
application. Celeste Henri of 142 Coles Road handed Mr. Popper the letters and also the
notarized affidavit for the public hearing sign and the mailing to abutters. Mr. Henri passed out
the floor plans and plot plans. Mr. Henri said this is the plan for a3 car garage, canning room
and carport. He said the carport is just a place to sit at a table and be out of the sun and a place to
keep an enclosed trailer. Mr. Driska said that the height complies with our zoning regulations
since the peak can be greater than 18 feet. He said a lot of detached garages exceed 18 feet with
the peak. Mr. Cannata said he didn’t think it would stick out like a sore thumb. M. Driska said
he sent Mr. Popper a memo about the modification to reduce the proposed garage space since
they should not include the canning room or carport in that calculation. Mr. Driska said 1,600
square feet of garage is allowed with a special permit and this garage along with their existing
garage totals 1,590 square feet.

Chairman Kelly asked what will be in the garage and Mr. Henri said 2 pickup trucks and
snowblower and lawn mower. He said the main garage will be used for the everyday car. He
said there will eventually be electricity in there. Chairman Kelly asked what materials they will
use for the garage and Mr. Henri said vinyl siding and traditional roofing shingles. Mr.
Cambeareri asked if this building will be used for a business and Mr. Henri said no. Mr, Cannata
said there was nothing here that would stop you from having water, heat and electricity.



Chairman Kelly asked if there was anyone in the public that wanted to speak regarding
application #23-05. :

Mr. Popper read letters from Michael and Rebecca Landry, 5 Robbie Road, Mary and Randall
Comelio, 144 Coles Road and Donald Russ, 7 Robbie Road who were all in favor of the
application.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Ann Grasso to close the public
hearing for application #23-05, All were in favor; the motion passed.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to approve
application #23-05. All were in favor; the motion passed.

10. Public Hearings:

11. Commissioner's Comments:

Mr. Demetriades said that River Cog was moving forward with their CED’s plan and the
Commissioners can check the website. He said I suggested the Plan of Conservation and
Development be digitized and I would like to put together a PowerPoint with audio to show you
an example of what [ mean just to give you an idea. Chairman Kelly said that is a good idea.

Mr. Cambareri said we recently have had many applications for site plan modifications for signs
and I would like to propose that staff be allowed to make those decisions. He said it seems like
that would be a more efficient process. Mr. Cannata said so let the staff approve these unless it’s
something really unusual. The Commission members and stafl discussed the sign applications
agreed that staff should administer the sign applications but advise the Commission of the signs
approved.

12. Approval of Minutes:
a. March 7, 2023

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Ann Grasso to approve the minutes of
March 7, 2023. All were in favor; the motion passed.

13. Adjourn:

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to adjourn at 7:51pm.
All were in favor; the motion passed.

Respectfully submitted,

Recording Clerk



RECEYVED FOR RECORD
How T11»2023 Di140F
Jofnn Doule

T0WH CLERK
CROMMELL s €

Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

REGULAR MEETING
7:00 P.M, TUESDAY APRIL 18, 2023
COUNCIL CHAMBERS CROMWELL TOWN HALL
41 WEST STREET

Minutes and Record of Votes

Present: Chairman Alice Kelly, Vice Chairman Michael Cannata, Chris Cambareri, Ann
Grasso, Nick Demetriades,

Absent: Brian Dufresne, Ken Rozich, John Keithan, Paul Cordone, Robert Donohue
Also present:  Zoning Enforcement Officer Bruce Driska

1.  Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 7:02pm by Chairman Kelly.

2. Roll Call

The presence of the above members was noted.

3.  Seating of Alternates - none

4. Approval of Agenda

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to approve the
agenda. All were in favor; the motion passed.

5. Development Compliance Officer Report: no report
6.  Director of Planning and Development Report: no report
7. New Business

a.POCD update

b.Zoning Regulations update

Robert Collins, SLR Consulting, Cheshire, CT reviewed what was discussed at the last meeting



: 2
and said I left you with vision statements to review. He said I would like to review your thoughts
tonight and consolidate your ideas into one statement. He said maybe we can prepare a draft
tonight and pass it around electronically over the next week to allow everyone to make changes.
Mr. Collins said the final survey summary report was emailed to you. Chairman Kelly said a

* paper version is preferable. Mr. Collins passed out copies of the {inal survey summary report to
the Commissioners. Ile said we received about 30 more submissions since the draft summary so
we ended up with 325 responses which equals 3.2% of the residents.

Mr. Collins asked for thoughts on the vision statement SLR drafted for Cromwell. Mr.
Cambareri said we do not mention the river in the statement but we are a riverfront community.
He said he would like to see that incorporated into the statement. Mr. Collins said we can just
lead off with the statement that Cromwell is a riverfront community. Mr, Demetriades said he
thought the same thing and read an example of an opening statement that he drafted. Mr. Collins
" said he suggested keeping the statement broad enough to capture the present and the future, He
said this could be done in just a sentence or two. Ms. Grasso asked if the vision statement was a
marketing tool and thought it would be better to limit the use of flowery statements. Mr. Collins
said he never looked at it as a marketing tool but it is similar. He said the themes should be
explained in the individual chapters and the statement should just be 2 to 4 paragraphs long.

Chairman Kelly said she reviewed Middletown’s vision statement and really liked it. She said
they used quick words to begin every paragraph. Mr. Collins said every community does it
differently. He said the themes could be touched on in the vision statement buf expanded on in
different chapters each with their own vision statement. Mr. Collins said New Britain has a
similar concept. Ms. Grasso said she likes the clarity of New Britain’s vision statement.

There was a discussion about the slogan, Live well, Play well, Plan well, Cromwell. M.
Cambareri said it was a great slogan. Chairman Kelly said you need to consider what attracts
younger people.

Mr. Collins asked Mr. Demetriades to fine tune the opening statement he read catlier. Mr.
Demetriades asked what the framework was and Mr. Collins said the opening paragraph should
reflect what Cromwell is. He said it should be about the essence or quality of life. The
Commissioners discussed using the words Live, Play and Plan as call out words and tying them
into the themes. It was discussed that the word grow could be used as well. Mr. Collins asked if
the Commissioners could communicate with one another via email or a shared document and Mr,
Driska said everyone can send their changes or edits to Mr. Popper and then we can reshare the
document. Ms, Grasso said the words but and however should be avoided.

Mr. Demetriades asked about sustainability. Mr. Collins said in the Plan of Conservation and
Development (POCD) we are talking about the town being sustainable and passing on the
resources to the next generation in good condition, Mr. Demetriades asked how the rest will fall
into place. Mr. Collins said we will share proposed guidelines with you. Chairman Kelly asked
Mr. Driska to get copies of that to the Commissioners.

Mr. Collins said next month I will share the final version of the vision statement. He asked Mr.
Demetriades to share his statement ideas with the Commissioners so they can take the next week



or so to make edits to it. He said at the next meeting we will make small tweaks to that and it
will be a vision statement that is unique to Cromwell, Mr. Collins said once we nail down the
vision statement and themes we will align the subject matter. He said we will start to develop
goals and objectives and policies for you to consider. Mr. Collins said they are going to have
round table meetings with different town staff to understand what is going on in the town and
then we will bring that back to you for consideration.

Mr. Collins said we can move on fo zoning code updates. He said 1 have shared the summary of
the proposed outline and it is condensed down into 7 chapters from 10. He said we will migrate
into the new format and will have more detailed annotated chapters with some new subsections.
Mr. Collins said they will maintain a master document to track the changes and to help answer

any questions.

Mr. Collins said he wanted to talk about zoning concepts. He said these are ideas not fully
covered by the zoning code. He said we have to think about how we can incorporate or enhance
them and he has created one page summaries of different subjects. He asked the Commissioners
to review them and make notes on how you think we can expand those subjects.

Ms. Grasso asked what middle housing was and Mr. Collins said it is a home between a single
family and high density housing, He said they would be town homes or row homes not 4-5 story
apartments. There was a discussion on the special permit needed for 3 family homes.

A break was called at 8:20pm to change the recording device. The meeting was called back to
order by Chairman Kelly at 8:24pm. :

Mr. Demetriades told the Commissioners that he wanted to share the concept of audio on the
electronic version of the POCD. He used a slideshow of the website to demonstrate the audio. He
said they can do a running narrative of the POCD themes and they can also do it for the town

website, Mr. Collins said your IT department can add audio links to the website. The
Commissioner agreed it was a good idea.

8. Commissioner's Comments:
9. Adjourn:

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Nick Demetriades to adjourn at
8:34 pm. All were in favor; the motion passed.

Respectfully submitted,

Linda Imme
Recording Clerk



Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

€

SPECIAL MEETING
7:00 PM. THURSDAY MAY 4, 2023
COUNCIL CHAMBERS CROMWELL TOWN HALL
41 WEST STREET
Minutes and Record of Votes

Present: Chairman Alice Kelly, Vice Chairman Michael Cannata, Chris Cambareri, Ann Grasso and
John Keithan

Absent: Brian Dufresne, Ken Rozich, Paul Cordone, Robert Donohue and Nick Demetriades

Also present: Zoning Enforcement Officer Bruce Driska and Director of Planning and Development
Stuart Popper

1. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 7:02pm by Chairman Kelly.

2. RollCall
The presence of the above members was noted.

CROMMELL s €T Q

3. Seating of Alternates - none

4. Approval of Agenda
A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Ann Grasso to approve the agenda. All were in
favor; the motion passed. '

5. Public Comments - none

6. Development Compliance Officer Report:
Mr. Driska said the only change to his report is that application #23-12 was approved administratively
today and is not pending anymore. Chairman Kelly asked what the modification was and Mr. Driska said
they are changing the access door, installing a new sign and will make interior modifications as well.

7. Director of Planning and Development Report:
Mr. Popper said that 100 Berlin Road will hopefully be in front of the Town Council in June. It’s
possible they will begin demolition this summer. He said Arbor Meadows is in the 5th and last
phase so they are way ahead of schedute. Mr. Popper said the Texas Roadhouse is finishing up
their building permits now. He said Sysco still has their application withdrawn but will we will
meet with them to discuss the location of the driveway. Ms. Grasso asked about the Citgo
station and Mr. Popper said the overhead canopy has been demolished. Mr. Driska said they are
trying to make it look pretty while it is just sitting there.



Chairman Kelly asked about Piney Ridge and said it has to be rezoned and go back to what it
was before since the State said we were in violation. The Commissioners and staff discussed the
State DOT denying the owners request to put up billboard.

8. New Business: Accept and Schedule New Applications:
a. Application #23-13: Request for a Special Permit under Sections 3.3.C.4, 7.5.B.4, 8.7 of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for restaurant with alcoholic beverages at 35A Berlin Road in the Highway
Business Zone District. Kemal Cecunyanin is the Applicant and River Grace Plaza LLC is the Owner.

Mr. Popper said Joe’s filling station is gone and the business next door will open a new place in that
space. He said we can hear this application at the first meeting in June on the 6th.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by John Keithan to accept and schedule
application #23-13 for a public hearing on June 6, 2023. All were in favor; the motion passed.

b. Application #23-14: Request for a Special Permit under Sections 3.3.C.4, 7.5.B.4, 8.7 of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for restaurant with alcoholic beverages at 530 Main Street in the Local Business
Zone District. Brian Bonneau is the Applicant and Marsal Realty Corp is the Owner.

Mr. Popper said that the Well will move to an empty space in the Liberty Bank shopping plaza on Main
Street. He said that is a good spot for them with plenty of parking. He said that can also be heard on June
6",

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to accept and schedule
application #23-14 for a public hearing on June 6, 2023. All were in favor; the motion passed.

9. New Business:
a. Application #23-10: Request for Site Plan Approval to construct a contractor’s building
at 70 County Line Drive. Morecon Builders, LLC is the Applicant and Nova Sky
Properties are the Owner.

Mr. Popper said this application is for the same site were a building for a moving company was approved
but they never built. He said the applicant did receive an Inland Wetlands permit for activities within the
Upland Review Area at the Inlands Wetlands and Watercourses Agency meeting last month.

Mr. Justin Packard, Engineer with Hallisey, Pearson and Cassidy at 630 Main Street, Cromwell, CT
showed the property on a map. He described the site, the location and said the site has 125 feet of
frontage and is .7 acres. Mr. Packard said it is on industrial zoned land and is currently a vacant lot. He
explained that the rear third of the lot is wooded and the rest is grass and there is a gradual slope to the
tree line and then a sharper drop into the wetlands. Mr. Packard said there is a conservation easement on
the property. He said they are proposing to build a 6,600 square foot contractors building. Mr. Packard
said it will be one story with 6 separate bays. He said Morecon Builders builds custom homes and will
use 2 or 3 of the bays and rent out the other 3 or 4. He said the bays will mainly be a place to store
materials and to act as a showroom for customers and there will be 12 parking spaces. Mr. Packard said
there will be a row of boxwood shrubs planted near the conservation line. He showed the location for a
monument sign but said they are unsure if they will need that right now. Mr. Packard said we would like
to ask that any future sign be approved by staff. He said the site meets all zoning requirements and the
drainage will be an underground filtration system with no increase in runoff expected. Mr. Packard
explained the utility connection and showed the rendering of the building, He said the it will be concrete



block with vertical siding on the top third of the building. He said each bay will have its own access door
in the front and the back of the building. Mr. Packard said they have received comments from the Town
Engineer and we agree with all of them and they are deal mostly with maintenance requirements for the
site drainage.

Mr. Jim Cassidy, Engineer with Hallisey, Pearson and Cassidy, 630 Main Street, Cromwell, CT showed
the brown tones of the building. Mr. Cannata asked about sanitary facilities and Mr. Packard said all six
bays will have their own restroom. He showed the dumpster enclosure on the map. Mr. Driska said staff
will advise them on the monument sign once they bring in the specifications.

Mr. Popper reminded the Commissioners that any approval should include the memo from Jon Harriman
dated April 27, 2023.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by John Keithan to approve application #23-10
with the conditions of Jon Harriman’s memo dated April 27, 2023 adhered to. All were in favor; the
motion passed.

Mr. Popper welcomed Morecon Builders to Cromwell

b. Application 21-32: Request to modify the Sidewalk location in the Scheu Farm
Subdivision at Cortland Way. Reed Builders, LLC is the Applicant and the Owner.

Jim Cassidy, Engineer with Hallisey, Pearson and Cassidy, 630 Main Street, Cromwell, CT said that
Cortland Way is under construction and it is an 8-lot subdivision. He said that 3 houses are under
construction now. Mr. Cassidy showed the original plan with the sidewalk plan. He said that plan
involved connecting to the Board of Education sidewalks through an opening in their fence and they
decided they didn’t want to do that. He said we don’t want to place the sidewalk around the entire cul-de-
sac since this site is required to have a snow storage shelf and it is near where the sidewalks would be
around lots 6, 7 and 8. Mr. Cassidy said they are proposing to move the handicap ramp to the other side of
the road then the original plan and not put sidewalks around the entire cul-de-sac but to stop the sidewalks
where the ramp would be. Chairman Kelly said this doesn’t prevent snow on their property and Mr.
Cassidy said no it doesn’t but it won’t create an issue because of the easement. Mr. Cannata asked Mr.
Driska and Mr. Popper if Mr. Harriman had any concerns with this. Mr. Popper said Mr. Harriman didn’t
take a position on the placement of the sidewalks. Mr. Popper said [ feel the sidewalks should extend to
the snow easement as shown on the map. He said we drove around today and there is not lots of
consistency with sidewalks on cul-de-sacs. Mr. Popper said this is the chance to make this as a template
for future cul-de-sacs. Mr. Cassidy said I do understand but lots 7 and 8 should not have sidewalks.

Jennifer Hussey, wife of Sean Hussey of Reed Builders said she doesn’t think the town will know where
the snow shelf is and only pile the snow on that specific area. She said the snow will impact lots 5 and 6
and the sidewalks should really end before lot 5.

Mr. Cassidy said the handicap ramp will make it difficult for maintenance of in the cul-de-sac and it will
be easier to install the ramp in a straight area. Mr. Popper suggested that the rule of thumb be not to put
sidewalks near snow easements. Ms. Grasso asked what the point of the sidewalk would be from the
proposed handicap ramp to lot 5. She said you shouldn’t need sidewalks all the way around a cul-de-sac
as traffic should be slow around the curve.

The Commissioners discussed where the end of the sidewalk should be and they decided that they should
stop at the western edge of the driveway of lot 5.



A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to waive the installation of the
sidewalks as shown on approved plan and place the sidewalk up until the western edge of the driveway of
lot 5. All were in favor; the motion passed.

10. Commissioner's Comments: none

11.  Approval of Minutes:
a. March 21, 2023
b. April 4, 2023

The minutes were not discussed as there were not enough Commissioner present at this meeting who were
at the meetings.

12. Adjourn:
A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by John Keithan to adjourn at 7:58pm. All were in

favor; the motion passed.

Respectfully submitted,

(:l;{ inndes vt

Linda Imme
Recording Clerk



